
 
Solicitor to the Council and Monitoring Officer, T W 
Mortimer LLB Solicitor 

OSC  

 

 
 

 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
Notice of a Meeting, to be held in the Council Chamber - Ashford Borough Council on 
Tuesday, 9th April, 2024 at 7.00 pm. 
 
 
The Members of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee are:- 
 
Councillor Bell (Chair) 
Councillor Chilton (Vice-Chair) 
 
Cllrs. Arnold, Bartlett, Buchanan, Feacey, Joseph, Ledger, Meaden, Michael, Shilton 

and Suddards. 
 
Agenda 
  Page Nos..  
1.   Apologies/Substitutes 

 
 

 To receive Notification of Substitutes in accordance with Procedure 
Rule 1.2 (c) 
 

 

 
2.   Declarations of Interest 

 
3 - 4 

 To declare any interests, which fall under the following categories, as 
explained on the attached document: 
 

a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) 
b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) 
c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests 

 
See Agenda Item 2 for further details 
 

 

 
3.   Minutes of the last Meeting 

 
5 - 14 

 To approve the Minutes of the last Meeting 
 

 
 
4.   Arlingclose Presentation 

 
 

 
5.   Schedule of Cabinet Key Decisions 

 
15 - 20 

 
Queries concerning this agenda?  Please contact Democratic Services  
Telephone: 01233 330491 email: democraticservices@ashford.gov.uk 
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: www.ashford.gov.uk/committees 

 

http://www.ashford.gov.uk/committees


 

 

 



Declarations of Interest (see also “Advice to Members” below) 
 
(a) Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) under the Localism Act 2011, relating to items on 

this agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and 
the agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated. 
 
A Member who declares a DPI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting for that 
item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted). 

 
(b) Other Significant Interests (OSI) under the Kent Code of Conduct relating to items on this 

agenda.  The nature as well as the existence of any such interest must be declared, and the 
agenda item(s) to which it relates must be stated. 
 
A Member who declares an OSI in relation to any item will need to leave the meeting before 
the debate and vote on that item (unless a relevant Dispensation has been granted).  
However, prior to leaving, the Member may address the Committee in the same way that a 
member of the public may do so. 

 
(c) Voluntary Announcements of Other Interests not required to be disclosed under (a) and 

(b), i.e. announcements made for transparency alone, such as: 
 
• Membership of amenity societies, Town/Community/Parish Councils, residents’ groups or 

other outside bodies that have expressed views or made representations, but the Member 
was not involved in compiling or making those views/representations, or 

 
• Where a Member knows a person involved, but does not have a close association with 

that person, or 
 
• Where an item would affect the well-being of a Member, relative, close associate, 

employer, etc. but not his/her financial position. 
 
 [Note: Where an item would be likely to affect the financial position of a Member, relative, 

close associate, employer, etc.; OR where an item is an application made by a Member, 
relative, close associate, employer, etc., there is likely to be an OSI or in some cases a DPI. 
ALSO, holding a committee position/office within an amenity society or other outside body, or 
having any involvement in compiling/making views/representations by such a body, may give 
rise to a perception of bias and require the Member to take no part in any motion or vote.] 

 
Advice to Members on Declarations of Interest:   
(a) Government Guidance on DPI is available in DCLG’s Guide for Councillors, at 

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf 
 

(b) The Kent Code of Conduct was adopted by the Full Council on 19 July 2012, 
and a copy can be found in the Constitution alongside the Council’s Good Practice Protocol 
for Councillors dealing with Planning Matters. See  https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-
democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf  

 
(c) Where a Member declares a committee position or office within, or membership of, an outside 

body that has expressed views or made representations, this will be taken as a statement 
that the Member was not involved in compiling or making them and has retained an open 
mind on the item(s) in question. If this is not the case, the situation must be explained. 

 
If any Member has any doubt about any interest which he/she may have in any item on this 
agenda, he/she should seek advice from the Director of Law and Governance and Monitoring 
Officer, or from other Solicitors in Legal and Democracy as early as possible, and in advance 
of the Meeting. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/5962/2193362.pdf
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf
https://www.ashford.gov.uk/media/2098/z-word5-democratic-services-constitution-2019-constitution-of-abc-may-2019-part-5.pdf


This page is intentionally left blank



OSC 
 

377 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
Minutes of a Meeting of the Overview & Scrutiny Committee held in Council 
Chamber, Civic Centre, Tannery Lane, Ashford on the 13th February 2024. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr. Bell (Chair),  
Cllr. Chilton (Vice-Chair), 
 
Cllrs. Arnold, Bartlett, Mrs. Bell, Feacey, Joseph, Ledger, Michael, C. Suddards. 
 
In accordance with Procedure Rule 1.2(c), Cllr Mrs. Bell attended as Substitute 
Member for Cllr. Shilton. 
 
Apologies: 
 
Cllrs. Buchanan, Hayward, Meaden, Ovenden, Shilton. 
  
In attendance:  
 
Cllrs. Campkin, Nilsson, Wright 
 
Chief Executive; Deputy Chief Executive; Corporate Director of Place, Space & 
Leisure; Corporate Director of Housing, Customer, Technology & Finance;  Assistant 
Director of Environment, Property & Recreation; Assistant Director HR Customer 
Services Communications & Digital; Safety & Wellbeing Manager; Development 
Partnership Manager; Service Lead Finance; Senior Accountant;  Scrutiny & 
Partnerships Manager; Senior Governance & Data Protection Officer; Member 
Services Officer.  
 
Also in Attendance (virtually) 
 
Cllrs. Hallett, McGeever. 
 
302 Declarations of Interest 
 
Cllr 
 
Bartlett 
 
 
Mrs.Bell 
 
 
Feacey 
 
 
 

Interest 
 
Made a Voluntary Announcement that 
he was a KCC Member 
 
Made a Voluntary Announcement that 
she was a KCC Member 
 
Made a Voluntary Announcement that 
he was Chair of Ashford Volunteer 
Centre and Chair of Ashford 
International Development Company 

Minute No 
 
306 
 
 
306 
 
 
306 

 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



OSC 
130224 
 

 
378 

 

303 Minutes 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the Minutes of the Meeting of this Committee held on the 12th December 
2023 be approved and confirmed as a correct record. 
 
304 Safeguarding Annual Report  
 
The Safety & Wellbeing Manager introduced the report, which detailed the work 
undertaken to meet the Council’s safeguarding obligations and activities 
that the Council had participated in or organised, in conjunction with external 
partners.  Additional information on statutory returns to the county boards and 
around the work done to support the training of ABC staff and Members was 
included. 
 
The Chairman opened up the item for discussion and the following questions/points 
were raised: 
 

• Information pertaining to Designated Safeguarding Officers was included on 
the ABC internal smart hub. 
 

• Job descriptions were not going to be amended for the Safeguarding Lead 
Officers, but they would receive a letter detailing the additional 
responsibilities. 

 
• In response to a question asking who determined the Red Amber Green 

(RAG) rating, and why did the RAG rating for 2023 and the panel RAG rating 
differ, the Safety & Wellbeing Manager explained that the Safeguarding Team 
completed and determined the original RAG rating since it was a self-
assessment framework.  The Kent and Medway Safeguarding Adult Board 
then reviewed that assessment in conjunction with safeguarding specialists 
from either the police, social services or health services and then awarded 
their rating based on their review.  The Council then had 12 months to work 
towards improving all of those from Amber to Green. 
 

• A Member spoke about a proposal that schools in Ashford were going to have 
to bid against one another for funding for SEND children, and asked what sort 
of work was being carried out in schools in the Borough, particularly around 
special educational needs.  It was established that the Safeguarding Team did 
undertake some work with schools on different areas in relation to 
safeguarding working with third party providers, and with the Local Children's 
Partnership Group.  If there were particular issues that were raised, then the 
Officers would work with KCC to support that family where needed. 
 

Resolved: 
 
That the report be received and noted. 
 
 

Page 6



OSC 
130224 

 

 
379 

 

305 Corporate Performance Report Quarter 3 
 
The Senior Governance & Data Protection Officer introduced the report, which 
summarised performance against the Key Performance Indicators (KPI’s) reflecting 
the Corporate Plan for 2022/24. 
 
Following questions received when the Q2 report was presented, additional 
commentary had been included in response to those questions: 
 

• KPI 22 - 18 to 24 years old unemployment, an additional note has been added 
to give some insight into the work done with local partners to improve this 
measure 

• KPI 44 – Council Tax collection, where some concern was raised about the 
slightly below target returned for the previous year’s collections. 

 
Members attention was also drawn to some corrections that had been made to some 
of the planning measures found towards the end of the report, following a review 
driven by a disparity identified between the reported figures and those published 
nationally. 
 
The Chairman opened up the item for discussion and the following questions/points 
were raised: 
 

• A Member referred to KPI 09 (recycling rate) and asked why it did not include 
figures from the Ashford Waste Recycling Centre, and was it possible to 
obtain those figures from Kent County Council.  It was explained that any Kent 
resident could use the Centre and it was not exclusively just for Ashford 
residents.  The data from the Recycling Centre was assigned to ABC, with 
returns being submitted to WRAP and to Defra, and that data would then be 
consolidated.  Therefore, the current figures were potentially 
underrepresented, but after consolidation of the two sets of data together at 
the end of the financial year, those figures would be more accurate. 

 
• KPI 33 (business survival) vacancy rate was based upon rated premises.  

This could include commercial premises, shops, factories, or warehouses.  
Concerning a situation where someone decided to take their business out of 
the unit and relocate to home, that premises would consequently become 
vacant and would be flagged up in that KPI figure. 
 

• A Member noted in reference to KPI 13 (Food hygiene), that in recent months 
the local press had reported that some restaurants had dipped and failed to 
meet expected standards.  The Senior Governance & Data Protection Officer 
agreed there was now generally an increase in publicity of this topic in the 
local press than in previous years.  He added that a large number of food 
business had opened up during COVID including take away businesses and 
they were now under more financial pressure because of the cost of living 
squeeze.   
 

• A Member commented that he was pleased to see that KPI 46 (Gas Safety 
Certificates) now stood at 100%. 
 

Page 7



OSC 
130224 
 

 
380 

 

• A Member asked whether the measure for National Lottery tickets could be 
changed from number of tickets sold to the value instead, and display how 
much of the money was going to good causes.   
 

• A request was made for the committee to support the three forums of the 
Friends of Victoria Park with sums similar to the National Lottery tickets.  The 
Scrutiny and Partnerships Manager said that she was happy to advise 
Members on the procedure for Community Grant Funding applications. 
 

Resolved 
 
That the report be received and noted. 
 
306 Final Report of the Budget Scrutiny Task Group 
 
The Chairman spoke to the Committee about his final report, which had not been 
included in the BSTG final report. He outlined the points contained within his report: 
 
- The draft budget documents were considered by the Budget Scrutiny Task Group 
and detailed how the Council intended to fund its services and initiatives for the next 
municipal year, including any financial risks to the budget and key income streams.   
 
- The Task Group noted the Council held a diverse property portfolio and were 
confident that there was low risk in this area of the budget. However, it was felt that 
opportunities to develop sites for industrial units should be explored in light of how 
well these types of development performed in the current portfolio. 
 
- Members agreed there were adequate resources allocated to the Planning and 
Development service budget to support the ongoing preparation for the next Local 
Plan.  Resources were also focused on meeting the performance targets determined 
by the statutory time scale period set by the government. 
 
- Issues at Stodmarsh continued to have a significant impact on major applications.  
The Task Group had identified further performance indicators to help ascertain the 
difference between backlog planning applications that had not been affected by 
Stodmarsh 
 
- Thanks was given to the Members of the Task Group and all of the Officers who 
were involved with scrutinizing 2024/25 draft Budget Task Group, acknowledged 
officers for the hard work and time taken to prepare various presentations and 
reports. Thanks was also extended to the Portfolio Holders and other Members who 
attended the meetings. 
 
The Chairman then gave his view that the budget was not sound and deliverable or 
achievable.  His reasons for this included; 
 
➢ The Council’s debt was subject to short-term interest rates, which were not 

locked in and therefore could potentially increase. 
➢ The recent development of ABC running the Picture House Cinema now 

placed a large risk to the budget as the risks and the costs were developing.   
➢ KCC interagency receivable waste funds of £272,000 a year were now at risk. 

Page 8



OSC 
130224 

 

 
381 

 

➢ There was a degree of scepticism and worry that the savings from 
International House would not be as large as previously stated in the budget. 

➢ Dover District Council were reported to be considering taking action against 
the government and Defra, (not ABC) about their decision to ensure the 
checking of food products.  The existence of potential legal action posed a 
possible risk with financial ramifications. 

➢ There was a continuing risk for the Monitoring Centre being able to deliver the 
service expected by the public and Members, and that could present a further 
risk to the budget. 

 
The Service Lead Finance responded to the first comment the Chairman had made 
regarding interest rates.  He advised that £6.7 million was held in the next year's 
accounts for short-term borrowing, with the interest rate at 5.75%.  Indications from 
the Bank of England pointed to a downward turn in interest rates, and additionally 
there were still funds in reserves.  The Chairman outlined his concern with the 
strategy to remain in short term borrowing whereas other Councils had moved to 
Public Work Loan Board borrowing with fixed lower interest rates.  The Service Lead 
Finance responded to say that the budget for 2024/25 was sufficient going forward to 
the Medium Term Financial Plan, but beyond 24/25, there was a risk not yet 
forecast.  He added that the risk could be fully mitigated by locking into the current 
rate, or the Council could uphold the current strategy and then be in a position to 
capture the downside of the interest rates.  A Member added that it was reasonable 
to assume that at some point during the next financial year, the market would deliver 
interest rates reductions and so accepted the strategy.  The Deputy Chief Executive 
reiterated the suggestion to monitor the situation and then consider how the Council 
would get the benefit of the predicted lowering of interest rates.  Arlingclose were an 
independent treasury advisory organisation and would be attending a meeting to talk 
to Members about the current situation and the appropriate strategy going forward. 
 
The Assistant Director of Environment, Property & Recreation advised that she was 
a director of Ashford Cinema and if the Chair felt this presented a conflict of interest 
then she would leave the room.  The Chair was happy for her to stay and asked the 
Committee keep the detail inexplicit to avoid disclosure of any undefined figures.   
The Service Lead Finance confirmed that the cinema did present a risk to the budget 
since the income figure would now be unachievable.  The strategic investment and 
property risk reserve had been set up explicitly for the purpose to counteract that 
risk.  The Chairman felt that some of the information regarding the cinema would 
have been known before the Budget Scrutiny Task Group had finished their 
deliberations, and it was unfortunate that they had not been given the opportunity to 
discuss it there.  A recommendation could be made to Cabinet to adjust the budget, 
which in turn would increase the deficit, and result in drawing more from reserves.  
The Council had a legal responsibility to set a balanced budget, as they had done 
every year, and there was always risk associated with that.   
 
It had been confirmed that the KCC interagency agreement had been cut, which 
resulted in a deficit of £272,000.  The Chairman said that he wished to highlight it 
because he had not officially been told about this as a member of the Budget Task 
Group, but had seen it on the KCC website.  The Corporate Director of Place, Space 
& Leisure added that statutorily, ABC were owed recycling credits and would be 
pursuing KCC for that funding. 
 

Page 9



OSC 
130224 
 

 
382 

 

Figures for International House remained sound and robust, and any changes to the 
estimates would be reported.   The final moving date remained likely to be within the 
financial year, and would be finalised once the Tender had been completed.  A 
Member commented that this was a huge project for ABC and there were risks to the 
budget if deadlines had to be moved back.   
 
The Committee discussed allocating quantifiable values to each of the risks being 
discussed, and the subsequent use of reserves.  It was noted that pushing up the 
deficit would increase the savings target for the next year and tougher harder 
decisions would need to be taken.  The MTFP already factored in reductions in the 
interest rate budget going forward.  A Member added that it had previously been 
agreed that the Committee would review the MTFP on an annual basis. 
 
The Vice-Chair spoke about the language used within the report, and that  
when reviewing the budget, specifically the arithmetic, he felt that it was ‘deliverable’.  
Whether it was ‘sound’ was another matter and that was something to be 
deliberated, particularly when considering the late information that had been 
presented.  The Chairman noted that the words used should be ‘sound and 
achievable’.    
 
He then went onto speak about the Port Health and the Deputy Chief Executive 
confirmed that Defra had given an undertaking that they would cover ABC costs and 
continue to underwrite those costs.  There was also an understanding that Defra 
would be rebutting the points made by Dover and they remained confident in the 
decisions already made.  A request was made that the letter from Defra be circulated 
to O&S Committee members, with clear annotation on its confidentiality level.  
Advice would be sought from the Monitoring Officer before circulating.   
 
A suggestion was made that a statement be produced stating that if information 
becomes available to the Council during the budget scrutiny process, and that 
information could impact on the budget, then the Budget Scrutiny Task Group should 
be told immediately.   
 
The Scrutiny & Partnerships Manager explained that she would formulate some 
wording into an additional report for Cabinet to explain that the Task Group wished to 
make further recommendations to reflect changes to the draft budget since it was 
scrutinised.  She highlighted that the report needed to be submitted as a late agenda 
paper to Cabinet, which was being held on 22nd February 2024.  The Minutes from 
this meeting would be formally agreed at the next O&S Committee meeting, whilst 
the Chairman’s further recommendations and Final Report could be shared with the 
BSTG members before being forwarded to Management Team and Cabinet. 
 
Members thanked the Officers for the excellent work undertaken to pull everything 
together and producing written information and reports.  
 
Resolved: 
 
That the report be received and noted. 
 
 
 

Page 10



OSC 
130224 

 

 
383 

 

307 Hybrid Working Report 
 
The Assistant Director HR Customer Services Communications & Digital introduced 
the report, which provided a review of the Council’s hybrid working arrangements 
and attitudes, together with some National Research data.  It provided a summary of 
some performance data, and the committee were reminded that the normal working 
patterns within ABC continued to be Monday to Friday office hours.  The report also 
reflected some of the factors that were important to recruitment when looking for a 
role and highlighted the key role that the option of hybrid working had on the 
Council’s ability to attract new staff.  The final section of the report provided further 
information on  performance pre and post pandemic.  It showed that there had been 
no discernible reduction to performance during the period where hybrid working was 
now established.  The report concluded by reflecting that hybrid working was now 
necessary as part of a modern workplace, but observations were required regarding 
productivity and morale, and the Council had to remain agile and adapt as lessons 
were learned from the ongoing experience. 
 
The Chairman opened up the item for discussion and the following questions/points 
were raised: 
 

• The Managers guide referenced in the report was openly available and could 
be readily shared.  The review taking place was pending the outcomes of the 
report being shared with the O&S Committee.  The corporate KPI’s provided 
high-level data in relation to monitoring performance and output. There was 
currently no policy in place to reimburse staff for costs associated with 
working from home.   Homeworking was not a contractual requirement for the 
individual, and many staff were able to save money in their commuting 
charges, so it was a decision purely for them.  The HMRC tax code change 
for employees working from home had been widely publicised at the Council.   
 

• One Member acknowledged that remote working was not available to him 
when he was younger and working and he wished he was still working today, 
but he did not agree with all of the sentiments.  He asked how the conflict 
between the difficulty of managing hybrid working and the benefits of happier 
staff was being addressed.  It was explained to him that guidance for 
managers was available and the principles of hybrid working had been 
incorporated within the Management Development Programmes.  Additionally, 
staff were encouraged to come into the office to work where any challenges 
with managing could only be resolved through that face-to-face contact and 
staff engagement continued to be a priority.  HR remained in place to provide 
support where difficult issues arose.   
 

•  A comment was made that it seemed difficult to measure productivity when 
staff were working remotely and the Member asked whether staff were set 
tasks by management or was their work self-determined.  It was explained 
that productivity within the organisation could not be measured in one uniform 
way, since each department worked differently.  For example, Customer 
Services could be measured by calls/emails answered and within a certain 
period, other departments would require clear set objectives that would then 
be reviewed at appraisals and one to one meetings.  Salaries were not 

Page 11



OSC 
130224 
 

 
384 

 

performance related, but increments could be withheld if performance issues 
arose, as was the situation prior to hybrid working. 
 

• It was confirmed that staff were expected to attend the office at least two days 
per week (pro rata for part time staff), but it varied across departments with 
different service needs and agreed arrangements with managers. A Member 
questioned the health and wellbeing of staff whilst working remotely and how 
the Council were safeguarding their staff.  The Assistant Director HR 
Customer Services Communications & Digitalisation explained that wellbeing 
was widely cited as a benefit of hybrid working because people had a better 
work life balance.  Where there may be concerns about people having stress 
or those kinds of issues, then support programs remained available for staff to 
access and the one to one meeting with their manager was pivotal to that.  If 
remote working were the reason for a deterioration in their mental health, then 
the option to work full time from the office would be encouraged to that 
individual.   
 

• A Member asked whether there had been an increase in complaints 
compared to previous years and it was confirmed that there were no 
complaints where the causal factor had been a member of staff working from 
home.   
 

• The Chairman commented that a lot of the graphs and statistics featured 
within the report were based on a particular survey from the Chartered 
Institute of Personnel and from Bupa, but the tone of that data countered what 
he had read in publications such as the Financial Times and the Economist.  
He quoted an article from the Economist in June 2023 titled ‘Working from 
Home – the illusion fades. It's not more productive than being in an office after 
all’.  The article was produced by companies that researched productivity and 
it quoted working from home as being less productive.  The article went onto 
list the companies telling staff to return to the office three days a week 
including Apple, Google and Meta.  He asked whether it was worth 
broadening the articles and investigations used for the report.  The Assistant 
Director HR Customer Services Communications & Digitalisation explained 
that the reason she had selected the CIPD was that it was part of her 
professional body; it was relatively recent research and because it had no 
political agenda and she was trying to provide a balanced view based on it. 
She added that there had been an increase in staff returning to the office 
since the pandemic finished.  The Chairman said that there was possibly an 
element of people wanting to be paid their salary for doing less, and he 
pondered whether the Council ought to be encouraging and showing a lead to 
get staff in the office rather than just asking them.  Another Member 
commented that in his ward, many people worked in London in the Finance 
and Banking sector and all of them had been asked to go back to Canary 
Wharf and the City of London five days a week.  The ethos in that field of work 
was that a lot of good business was achieved with people bouncing off each 
other.   
 

• A further question was asked about induction of new staff in particular, and 
whether they were required to be in the office since many city firms were now 
insisting on that for the probationary period of new staff.  At ABC some staff 

Page 12



OSC 
130224 

 

 
385 

 

were required to be in the office for a number of weeks to train before working 
remotely, whilst in other areas new starters would be able to remote work one 
or two days to review reports and various documents.   
 

• A Member spoke about the volume of people being driven to go online to 
apply for various things including parking permits, and suggested a method 
such as ‘mystery shopper’ to test how easy it was for customers to use.  The 
Chief Executive reminded Members that digital transformation was a separate 
issue to hybrid working.  Many services had been transferred online as part of 
the digital transformation project to offer 24/7 access so that residents could 
transact with ABC over a wider period.  People could still use the customer 
services desk anytime and come in for face-to-face meetings with staff and no 
service had been withdrawn.  Anyone unable to access an online service 
could ask for assistance from a Customer Service representative, who would 
help them using the PC at the front desk. 
 

• The Chief Executive explained that the productivity of the Authority was still 
operational and was still good.  The KPI's demonstrated that and she gave 
assurance that managers were on top of any performance issues and 
continued standard setting with staff to ensure things were being done 
correctly.  Managers had the authority to require staff to come into the office 
every day if necessary.  The process for new people coming into the 
organisation was important and managers were encouraged to make sure 
that graduates and apprentices were in the office more frequently to benefit 
from the in house learning from colleagues.  Many jobs within the Council 
were unable to be carried out from home e.g. Civil Enforcement Officers, 
Monitoring Centre, Aspire, Sheltered Housing and that should be taken into 
proportion.   
 

• The Portfolio Holder identified that publications such as the Financial Times 
and the Economist were focused more towards private sector businesses 
rather than the public sector.  She observed that hybrid working was the way 
forward for the NHS like Local Authorities, since people that could work from 
home saved the NHS a lot of money.   
 

• The Deputy Leader stated that, with respect to the Committee, they had 
requested the report, which had been presented to them.  That report was 
based on up-to-date data specific to the Council, whereas an article from the 
Financial Times could be perceived as irrelevant to the Local Authority.  The 
Committee were not being asked to like the conclusions of the report, but it 
did show that the organisation was working fine with hybrid working, and that 
was the key theme, since working 9:00 to 5:00, Monday to Friday, did not suit 
everyone in the same way that working from home every day did not suit 
everyone.  He said that Members should be trusting of the staff and Officers 
to make that decision.   
 

• A Member suggested the Committee revisit the topic in 12 months’ time, as 
the Council would then have moved to International House and working 
patterns may have changed once again.   
 
 

Page 13



OSC 
130224 
 

 
386 

 

Resolved  
 
 i) that the report be received and noted 
 
 ii) that a further review of hybrid working be undertaken in 12  
  months time 
 
308 Schedule of Key Decisions  
 
Resolved: 
 
That the report be received and noted. 
 
309 Work Programme and Tracker 
 
The Scrutiny & Partnerships Manager stated that a treasury management 
presentation from Arlingclose was planned for the April committee meeting, subject 
to their availability. 
 
Resolved: 
 
That the report be received and noted. 
 

 

____________________________________________________________________ 
 
Queries concerning these minutes?  Please contact membersservices@ashford.gov.uk  
Agendas, Reports and Minutes are available on: https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk  

Page 14

mailto:membersservices@ashford.gov.uk
https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk/


CABINET 
SCHEDULE OF KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN 

 
The following Key Decisions will be taken by Ashford Borough Council’s Cabinet on the dates stated. 
 
Ashford Borough Council’s Cabinet is made up of: - Councillors Noel Ovenden; Steve Campkin; Bill Barrett; Simon Betty; 
Linda Harman; Heather Hayward; Dawnie Nilsson; Kate Walder; and Liz Wright. 
 
Copies of the reports and any other relevant documents that are submitted to the Cabinet in connection with a proposed decision will be 
available for inspection, five clear days before the decision at https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk   
 

 
Decision Item Report Summary Relevant 

Portfolio 
Holder 

Report Author Open or 
Exempt 

Added to 
Schedule 

25th April 2024 
 
Disabled Facility Grant 
Policy 
 

The proposed policy will set out the way in 
which the Council provides both mandatory 
and discretionary grants for private sector 
adaptations, in accordance with current 
legislation and guidance. 
 

Cllr Barrett Julian Watts Open  1/2/24 

Borough Plan 2024-
2028   

Report of Member Consultation and agreement 
for the draft Borough Plan to go out to public 
consultation. 
 

Cllr Ovenden/ 
Hayward 

Jennifer Shaw Open 20/2/24 

30th May 2024 
 

 
 

 
 
 

    

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 5

https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk/
https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk/


Decision Item Report Summary Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Report Author Open or 
Exempt 

Added to 
Schedule 

27th June 2024 
 

Corporate Plan Annual 
Report 2023/24 
 

To present the Annual Report 2023/24 
highlighting performance against the Corporate 
Plan priorities. 
 

Cllr Ovenden/ 
Hayward 

Tom Swain 
 

Open 30/6/23 

Final Outturn 2023/24 
 

Final budget outturn for previous financial year. 
 

Cllr Ovenden Lee Foreman 
 

Open 30/6/23 

Housing Improvement 
Plan 
 

 Cllr Barrett Maria Stevens Open 11/3/24 

Updates to the Local 
Enforcement Plan 
 

 Cllr Harman Jo Alexander Open 11/3/24 

Corporate Recovery 
Policy 
 

 Cllr Ovenden Nic Stevens Open 22/3/24 

25th July 2024 
 

Financial Monitoring – 
Quarterly Report  
 

Quarterly budget monitoring report Cllr Ovenden Lee Foreman Open 30/9/22 

Revenues & Benefits 
Recommended Write-
Offs Schedule 
 
 
 
 

Proposed formal write-off of debts Cllr Ovenden Nic Stevens Open 
(Exempt 
Appendix) 

30/7/22 

P
age 16



Decision Item Report Summary Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Report Author Open or 
Exempt 

Added to 
Schedule 

Brompton Development 
 

To update of the progress of the discussions 
with both Brompton and the Developer in 
bringing forward the proposed development 
including the setting up a of joint venture 
company. 
 

Cllr Betty Paul McKenner Open 28/7/22 

Borough Plan 2024-
2028   
 

 Cllr Ovenden Charlotte 
Hammersley/ 
Jennifer Shaw 

Open 13/12/23 

Housing Tenancy 
Strategy 
 

 Cllr Barrett Rebecca Smith Open 6/3/24 

29th August 2024 
 

 
KEEP CLEAR FOR HOLIDAYS 

 
26th September 2024 

 
Corporate Performance 
Report 
 
 
 

The report seeks to give Members and the 
Borough’s residents an overview of how the 
Council is performing. It seeks to do this in a 
transparent and easily-accessible manner, 
giving a key performance ‘snapshot’. 
 

Cllr Hayward Tom Swain Open 2/10/23 

Update on Levelling Up 
Funding and Newtown 
Works Development 
 

To update on the progress in drawing down the 
Levelling Up Funding, the works undertaken to 
date, the current programme for the 
development and the risks for the project. 

Cllr Betty Andrew Osborne Open 2/10/23 

P
age 17



Decision Item Report Summary Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Report Author Open or 
Exempt 

Added to 
Schedule 

Parking Strategy 
 

 Cllr Campkin Alison Oates Open 1/12/22 

Allocations Policy 
 

 Cllr Barrett Amanda Gill Open 20/9/23 

31st October 2024 
 

Financial Monitoring – 
Quarterly Report 
 

Quarterly budget monitoring report. 
 

Cllr Ovenden Lee Foreman Open 27/10/23 

Council Tax Base 
2025/26 
 

To present for approval the estimated 2025/26 
Council tax base calculation for the Borough 
and each parished area, on which the major 
preceptors and local Parish Councils will base 
their requirements. 
 

Cllr Ovenden Jo Stocks Open 27/10/23 

Medium Term Financial 
Plan 
 

To ask Cabinet to note the Medium Term 
Financial Plan ahead of this year’s Budget 
process. 
 

Cllr Ovenden Lee Foreman Open 27/10/23 

Annual Commercial 
Property Update - 
2023/24 
 

To advise of the revenue performance of the 
Council’s corporate property portfolio during 
the last financial period and to advise of 
proposals to increase profitability in the coming 
financial period. 
 
 
 
 
 

Cllr Betty Eloise Duffy Open 27/10/23 

P
age 18



Decision Item Report Summary Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Report Author Open or 
Exempt 

Added to 
Schedule 

Housing Revenue 
Account (HRA) 
Business Plan 2024 -
2054 (including 
Financing and 
Affordable Homes 
Programme) 
 

To detail the financial position in the HRA and 
ask Members to agree Housing’s priorities for 
the next year. 

Cllr Barrett Jo Stocks/Mark 
James 

Open 
(Exempt 
Appendix) 

27/10/23 

28th November 2024 
 

Corporate Performance 
Report 
 

To give Members and residents an overview of 
how the council is performing with a key 
performance ‘snapshot’. 
 

Cllr Ovenden/ 
Hayward 

Tom Swain Open 1/12/23 

Draft Budget 2025/26 
 
 
 

To present the preliminary draft service budget 
and outline MTFP for the purposes of 
subsequent formal scrutiny by the O&S Task 
Group and public consultation. 
 

Cllr Ovenden Lee Foreman Open 1/12/23 

19th December 2024 
 

 
 

 
 
 

    

30th January 2025 
 

Revenues & Benefits 
Recommended Write-
Offs Schedule 

Proposed formal write-off of debts Cllr Ovenden Nic Stevens Open 
(Exempt 
Appendix) 

26/1/24 

P
age 19



Decision Item Report Summary Relevant 
Portfolio 
Holder 

Report Author Open or 
Exempt 

Added to 
Schedule 

Financial Monitoring – 
Quarterly Report 
 

Quarterly budget monitoring report 
 

Cllr Ovenden Lee Foreman Open 26/1/24 

20th February 2025 
 

Revenue Budget 
2025/26 
 
 

To present the draft revenue budget for 
2025/26 to the Cabinet for recommendation to 
Council. 
 

Cllr Ovenden Lee Foreman 
 

Open 29/2/24 

Corporate Performance 
Report 
 
 
 

The report seeks to give Members and the 
Borough’s residents an overview of how the 
Council is performing. It seeks to do this in a 
transparent and easily-accessible manner, 
giving a key performance ‘snapshot’. 
 

Cllr Ovenden/ 
Hayward 

Tom Swain Open 29/2/24 

27th March 2025 
 
Annual Pay Policy 
Statement (including 
Review for 2025/26) 
 

A review of the annual Pay Policy Statement. Cllr Nilsson Michelle Pecci/ 
Joy Cross 

Open 22/3/24 

 
 
 If you wish to contact a Report Author by email, unless stated otherwise, the addresses are; 
first name.surname@ashford.gov.uk 
 
25/3/24 
 

P
age 20


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes of the last Meeting
	10 Minutes of the last meeting
	Overview and Scrutiny Committee
	303	Minutes



	5 Schedule of Cabinet Key Decisions
	CABINET
	SCHEDULE OF KEY DECISIONS TO BE TAKEN
	The following Key Decisions will be taken by Ashford Borough Council’s Cabinet on the dates stated.
	Ashford Borough Council’s Cabinet is made up of: - Councillors Noel Ovenden; Steve Campkin; Bill Barrett; Simon Betty; Linda Harman; Heather Hayward; Dawnie Nilsson; Kate Walder; and Liz Wright.
	Copies of the reports and any other relevant documents that are submitted to the Cabinet in connection with a proposed decision will be available for inspection, five clear days before the decision at https://ashford.moderngov.co.uk
	If you wish to contact a Report Author by email, unless stated otherwise, the addresses are;
	first name.surname@ashford.gov.uk


